

Section I

Notice of Development of Proposed Rules and Negotiated Rulemaking

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

State Board of Education

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
6A-1.0014 Comprehensive Management Information
 System

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: To revise existing requirements of the statewide comprehensive management information system, to implement changes recommended by school districts, and to change state reporting and local recordkeeping procedures for state and/or federal programs as described in the updated FDOE Information Database Requirements. The rule also adopts the updated FDOE Information Database Requirements: Volume I – Automated Student Information System, 2026-27 and Volume II – Automated Staff Information System, 2026-27. The effect maintains compatibility among state and local information systems' components. The statewide comprehensive management information system provides data on which the measurement of school improvement and accountability is based.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: An amendment of the rule is proposed to update the reference to the FDOE Information Database Requirements documents. These documents describe the data elements, procedures and timelines for state reporting, local recordkeeping and statewide records transfer to be implemented by each school district and the department within the statewide comprehensive management information system.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 1001.02(1), (2)(n), 1002.22(3)(a), 1008.385(3), 1008.386(4), 1008.41(2), F.S.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 1002.22, 1002.221, 1002.222, 1002.225, 1008.385(2), 1008.386, 1008.41(2), F.S.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: August 10, 2026, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE:

<https://teams.microsoft.com/meet/214241220948115?p=e2IUEOEjFG2RHASIIIE>

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Shawna Reid, Executive Staff Director, Division of Technology and Innovation, (850)245-9070, Shawna.Reid@fldoe.org. To request a rule development workshop, please go to <https://web02.fldoe.org/rules> or contact: Chris Emerson,

Director, Office of Executive Management, Department of Education, (850)245-9601, Christian.Emerson@fldoe.org.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Available at <https://web02.fldoe.org/rules>.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Florida Building Commission

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
61G20-2.005 Alternative Plans Review and Inspection
 forms Adopted

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: HB 803 (2026), requires the Florida Building Commission to create two forms for use by private providers – a form for recording inspections performed by private providers, and a certificate of compliance to be submitted upon the completion of all required inspections. Additionally, Form # 61G20-2.005-2002-01 needs to be modified in order to reflect changes to what information is required to be provided when notifying a building official that private provider services will be utilized.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Creating required private provider forms and updating Form # 61G20-2.005-2002-01 to be consistent with state law.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 553.76(1), 553.791(5), (14), (15) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 553.791(5), (14), (15) FS

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Mo Madani, Technical Director, Florida Building Commission, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, (850)717-1825. THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Nursing Home Administrators

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
64B10-12.0001 Fees

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposed the rule amendment to update and clarify the rule language regarding fees.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Update the rule language regarding fees.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 456.013, 456.025, 456.036, 468.1685, 468.1695, 468.1705, 468.1715, 468.1725 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.013, 456.025, 456.036, 468.1695, 468.1705, 468.1715, 468.1725 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Dayle Mooney, Executive Director, Board of Nursing Home Administrators, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-07, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3257, (850)245-4355, or by email: Dayle.Mooney@flhealth.gov.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

Section II Proposed Rules

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
25-9.001	Application and Scope
25-9.004	General Filing Instructions
25-9.006	Size and Form of Tariffs
25-9.007	Gas - Electric - Water - Wastewater Utility Tariffs
25-9.009	Numbering and General Data Required for Each Sheet
25-9.010	Numbering of Supplements and Additions
25-9.021	Title Page
25-9.023	Description of Territory Served
25-9.029	Index of Rate or Exchange Schedules
25-9.033	Standard Forms
25-9.034	Contracts and Agreements
25-9.045	Withdrawal of Tariffs
25-9.051	Definitions
25-9.054	Size and Form of Documentation
25-9.055	Electric Utility Documentation
25-9.061	Title Page
25-9.069	Standard Forms and Blank Bill Form

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: To update and clarify the rules following the statutory rule review mandated by Section 120.5435, Florida Statutes.

Docket No.: 20260038-OT

SUMMARY: These rules are being amended to update the rule language to comply with current standards and make them more readable. The proposed amendments for Rules 25-9.001, 25-9.007, 25-9.009, 25-9.051, 25-9.055, F.A.C., remove references to rules that were repealed. In addition, in Rule 25-9.004, F.A.C., the proposed amendments clarify that tariffs may be

filed either in hard copy or electronically, and in Rule 25-9.006, F.A.C., proposed amendments remove reference to obsolete technology and reference current technology. The proposed amendments to Rule 25-9.034, F.A.C., also remove reference to an obsolete organization.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has been prepared by the Agency.

The SERC can be viewed in its entirety on the Commission's website at <file:///fp3/filings/psc/library/filings/2026/03974-2026/03974-2026.pdf>. The SERC examined the factors required by Section 120.541(2), F.S., and concluded that the rule amendments will not likely increase regulatory costs, including any transactional costs or have an adverse impact on business competitiveness, productivity, or innovation in excess of \$1 million in the aggregate within five years of implementation. The proposed amendments would have no impact on small business, would have no implementation cost to the Commission or other state and local government entities, and would have no impact on small cities or counties.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: based upon the information contained in the SERC

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 350.127(2), 366.05(1), 367.121, F.S.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 364.04, 366.04(2)(b), 366.0591 366.05(1), 366.06, 367.081, 367.091, 367.101, 367.121, 368.105, F.S.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Susan Sapoznikoff, Office of General Counsel, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850, (850)413-6630, susan.sapoznikoff@psc.state.fl.us.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

25-9.001 Application and Scope.

~~The provisions of Rules 25-9.002 through 25-9.045, F.A.C., shall only apply only to public utilities as defined in subsection 25-9.002(2), F.A.C., and the provisions of Rules 25-9.051 through 25-9.070 25-9.071, F.A.C., shall apply only to a utility municipalities and cooperatives as defined in subsection 25-9.051(2), F.A.C.~~

Rulemaking Authority 350.127(2), 366.05(1), 367.121 FS. Law Implemented 366.04(2)(b), 366.0591, 367.091, 367.101 FS. History—New 1-8-75, Repromulgated 10-22-75. Amended 8-9-79. Formerly 25-9.1, Amended 2-23-86, 1-8-95, 1-25-09, 12-30-15, _____.

25-9.004 General Filing Instructions.

(1) Each utility must ~~shall~~ file with the Commission, either electronically or with a hardcopy delivered to the Clerk's office, tariffs applicable to all territory served by it, showing all rates, classifications, and charges for service subject to the jurisdiction of the Commission furnished by the utility, and all related rules and regulations ~~relating thereto~~, except that the rates and charges for a specific item of equipment and/or special service arrangements for an individual customer need not be filed where the utility's tariff provides the basis for such charge.

(2) All tariffs, as well as any supplements, revisions, modifications, or changes to any portion must ~~thereof shall~~ be submitted to the Commission in quadruplicate and in the form prescribed in these rules herein. After acceptance, one stamped copy will be returned to the utility, which shall be the notice to the utility, that the filing has been accepted and approved.

(3) All tariff-related material submitted to the Commission must be accompanied by a letter of transmittal that lists the sheets being transmitted. If acknowledgment of the filing is requested, the letter of transmittal must be sent in duplicate with a request that the duplicate be returned.

~~(4)(3)~~ If a utility furnishes more than one kind of utility service, (e.g., gas and electricity, gas and water, water and wastewater, etc.), a separate tariff must be filed for each kind of service.

~~(4) All tariff related material submitted to the Commission shall be accompanied by a letter of transmittal which lists the sheets being transmitted.~~

~~(5) If acknowledgment of the filing be desired, the letter of transmittal shall be sent in duplicate with a request that the duplicate be returned.~~

Rulemaking Authority 350.127(2), 366.05(1), 367.121 FS. Law Implemented 366.05(1), 367.091 FS. History—New 1-8-75, Repromulgated 10-22-75, Formerly 25-9.04, Amended _____.

25-9.006 Size and Form of Tariffs.

~~(1)~~ All tariffs filed under these rules must ~~shall~~ be submitted in loose leaf form on 8 1/2" x 11" sheets, printed, typewritten, word-processed, mimeographed or produced by similar process, on a good grade of bond paper of durable

quality, using one side of the paper only. All copies must be clear and legible and have a sufficient margin shall be so allowed on each sheet to allow for a left-hand binding edge, so that when the rate book is open all printed matter will be in view.

~~(2) The Commission does not furnish blank forms for rate schedules nor binders for rate books. The utility shall supply durable binders for this purpose.~~

Rulemaking Authority 350.127(2), 366.05(1), 367.121 FS. Law Implemented 366.05(1), 367.091, 367.121 FS. History—New 1-8-75, Repromulgated 10-22-75, Formerly 25-9.06, Amended _____.

25-9.007 Gas - Electric - Water - Wastewater Utility Tariffs.

Tariffs for gas, electric, water, and wastewater utilities must ~~shall~~ include, where applicable of, the following sections, as applicable, in the following order named:

	Ref. Rule No.
(1) Front cover	<u>25-9.020</u>
(2) through (3) renumbered (1) through (2) No change.	
(3)(4) Description General of the territory served	25-9.023
(5) through (14) renumbered (4) through (13) No change.	
(15) Back cover	

Rulemaking Authority 366.05(1), 367.121 FS. Law Implemented 366.05(1), 367.121 FS. History—New 1-8-75, Repromulgated 10-22-75, Formerly 25-9.07, Amended _____.

25-9.009 Numbering and General Data Required for Each Sheet.

The numbering and general data required by this rule and listed below must ~~shall~~ appear on each sheet in the rate book, except for excepting the front and back covers and the individual sheets of special contracts.

(1) Every sheet (or page) in the rate book must ~~shall~~ be numbered. While any system that ~~which~~ provides for an orderly arrangement of the tariff is acceptable, it is suggested that, in the interest of uniformity the Commission suggests, all utilities give consideration to the following recommended procedures:

(a) Those utilities subject to Rule 25-9.001 25-9.007, F.A.C., must ~~should~~ employ a decimal system of numbering, so that any new or additional material can ~~may~~ be inserted in the logical place in the proper section of the tariff.

(b) Utilities of any classification, the size of whose tariffs are only a limited to relatively few pages, can ~~may~~, at their option, employ a simple consecutive sheet numbering system.

(2) Each sheet must ~~shall~~ bear the name of the utility which shall appear in the upper left-hand corner of the sheet.

(3) The ~~first~~ ~~FIRST~~ issue of each sheet in the rate book must be marked "Original Sheet" in the upper right-hand corner of the sheet. ~~For As an~~ example:

Original Sheet No. 1, or Original Sheet No. 5.2.

(4) Revised sheets in the rate book ~~must shall~~ be marked with the serial number of the revision in the upper ~~right right-hand~~ corner and the number of the sheet it replaces. ~~For As an~~ example:

First Revised Sheet No. 1

Cancels Original Sheet No. 1

or

Fourth Revised Sheet No. 5.2

Cancels Third Revised Sheet No. 5.2

(5) The name and title of the issuing officer of the utility must appear at the bottom of each sheet. ~~At the bottom of each sheet shall appear the name and title of the issuing officer of the utility.~~

Rulemaking Authority 350.127(2), 366.05(1), 367.121 FS. Law Implemented 366.05, 367.091 FS. History—New 1-8-75, Repromulgated 10-22-75, Formerly 25-9.09, Amended 1-25-09, _____.

25-9.010 Numbering of Supplements and Additions.

(1) When new or additional service classifications or rate schedules are to be established, the sheets containing such classifications or schedules ~~must shall~~ follow the last sheets in the rate schedule section of the appropriate classification and be given the next consecutive sheet number or numbers. Letter suffixes ~~must shall~~ not be used in numbering service classifications or rate schedules. Instead, an additional decimal point and number must be added when the last number increases sequentially with extra sheets.

(2) When revisions or additions to existing schedules or sheets require more space, one or more sheets ~~must shall~~ be issued to which the same sheet number must be given with a letter suffix. ~~For example, if changes are made in Original Sheet No. 5.2 and more than one sheet is required to show the changed or new matter, the new sheet must shall be issued as First Revised Sheet No. 5.2.1 5-2 A, etc.~~

Rulemaking Authority 350.127(2), 366.05(1), 367.121 FS. Law Implemented 366.05(1), 367.091 FS. History—New 1-8-75, Repromulgated 10-22-75, Formerly 25-9.10, Amended _____.

25-9.021 Title Page.

The title sheet must identify the volume as the rate book or tariff filed by the particular utility with the Florida Public Service Commission governing the sale of the specific utility service provided. ~~shall be a repetition of the front cover except that it must shall be marked as Sheet No. 1 of the rate book in the (upper right right-hand corner) and must display shall have thereon the general information required by Rule 25-9.009, F.A.C., of these regulations.~~

Rulemaking Authority 350.127(2), 366.05(1), 367.121 FS. Law Implemented 366.05(1), 367.091 FS. History—New 1-8-75, Formerly 25-9.21, Amended _____.

25-9.023 Description of Territory Served.

(1) The utility must provide a A brief, general description and/or map(s) map (8 1/2" x 11" inches) of the territory or territories it serves ~~served by the utility shall be provided in this section.~~

(2) Where the brevity of the description permits, this data can be placed on the title page (Rule 25-9.021, F.A.C., ~~above~~), in which case this section can may be omitted.

Rulemaking Authority 350.127(2), 366.05(1), 367.121 FS. Law Implemented 364.04, 366.05(1), 367.121 FS. History—New 1-8-75, Formerly 25-9.23, Amended _____.

25-9.029 Index of Rate Schedules or Exchange Schedule.

(1) This section ~~must shall~~ provide an index to facilitate prompt reference to any particular rate schedule.

(2) When ~~In cases where~~ the rate sections for which this index is provided contain less than twelve (12) sheets, this section can may be omitted.

Rulemaking Authority 350.127(2), 366.05(1), 367.121 FS. Law Implemented 366.05(1), 367.091 FS. History—New 1-8-75, Formerly 25-9.29, Amended 1-25-09, _____.

25-9.033 Standard Forms.

(1) An exact copy of all standard forms (uniform contracts, agreements, riders, service applications, service extension agreement or other form), pertaining where the same pertains to subscribers' and/or customers' services, ~~must shall~~ be included in this section.

(2) All such forms ~~must shall~~ be given a number so that reference can be made to them.

(3) When any such form is changed, altered, or amended, the revised issue ~~must shall~~ be filed with the Commission.

(4) In this section, the utility must provide a detailed index of its forms. ~~If such standard forms are numerous, this section shall be prefaced with an index as provided in Rule 25-9.008, F.A.C.~~

Rulemaking Authority 366.05(1), 367.121 FS. Law Implemented 366.05(1) FS. History—New 1-8-75, Formerly 25-9.33, Amended _____.

25-9.034 Contracts and Agreements.

(1) When a utility enters ~~Wherever~~ a special contract is ~~entered into by a utility~~ for the sale of its product or services in a manner or subject to the provisions not specifically covered by its filed regulations and standard approved rate schedules, such special contract must be approved by the Commission prior to its execution. Complete ~~Accompanying each contract~~

~~shall be completed~~ and detailed justification for the deviation from the utility's filed regulations and standard approved rate schedules must accompany each such special contract. If the Commission approves such special contracts ~~are approved by the Commission~~, a conformed copy of the special contract must ~~shall be filed~~ placed on file with the Commission before its effective date.

The provisions of this rule ~~do~~ shall not apply to contracts or agreements governing the sale or interchange of commodity or product by or between a public utility and a municipal electric utility municipality or a rural electric R.E.A. cooperative organized under Chapter 425, Florida Statutes, ~~but shall otherwise have application~~.

(2) Each utility must ~~shall make provision to~~ file with the Commission a conformed copy of all such special contracts that ~~which~~ are currently in effect but ~~and which~~ have not been previously filed.

(3) ~~If the number and size of such special contracts warrant, they may be placed in a separate binder.~~

Rulemaking Authority 366.05(1), 367.121 FS. Law Implemented 366.05(1), 367.121 FS. History—New 6-27-73, Repromulgated 1-8-75, Formerly 25-9.34, Amended _____.

25-9.045 Withdrawal of Tariffs.

(1) Every public utility desiring to withdraw or cancel any tariff or any provision of a tariff which is considered no longer effective or necessary must ~~shall~~ file with the Commission an informal application setting forth its reasons to withdraw or cancel such tariff or tariff provision, ~~and~~ requesting permission to withdraw same, and providing a type-and-strike (legislative) version of the tariffs to be withdrawn.

(2) A public utility may also reserve a tariff sheet for future use, rather than withdrawing the sheet entirely.

Rulemaking Authority 364.20, 366.05, 367.121, 368.05 FS. Law Implemented 366.04, 366.06, 367.081, 367.121, 368.105 FS. History—New 1-8-75, Formerly 25-9.45, Amended _____.

25-9.051 Definitions.

For the purposes of Rules 25-9.051 through 25-9.070, 25-9.071, F.A.C., the following definitions ~~shall~~ apply:

(1) No change.

(2) "Utility" refers to ~~a the~~ municipal electric utility or a utilities and rural electric cooperative organized under Chapter 425, Florida Statutes ~~cooperatives subject to the jurisdiction of this Commission pursuant to Section 366.04(2), F.S.~~

(3) through (5) No change.

(6) "Documentation" refers to the assembled volume containing the materials required by Rules 25-9.054 through 25-9.070 25-9.071, F.A.C.

(7) through (8) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 366.05(1) FS. Law Implemented 366.04(2)(b) FS. History—New 8-9-79, Amended 5-3-83, Formerly 25-9.51, Amended 12-30-15, _____.

25-9.054 Size and Form of Documentation.

(1) All documentation filed under these rules must ~~shall~~ be submitted in loose leaf form on 8 1/2" × 11" sheets, typewritten, word-processed, ~~mimeographed~~ or produced by similar processes on a good grade of bond paper of durable quality, using one side of the page only. All copies must be clear and legible and have a sufficient margin on ~~shall be so allowed across~~ each sheet to allow for a left-hand binding edge so that when the book is opened all printed material will be in view.

(2) ~~The Commission does not furnish blank forms for rate schedules nor binders for rate books. The utility shall supply durable binders for this purpose.~~

Rulemaking Authority 366.05(1) FS. Law Implemented 366.04(2)(b) FS. History—New 8-9-79, Formerly 25-9.54, Amended _____.

25-9.055 Electric Utility Documentation.

Documentation for electric utilities must include ~~shall, where appropriate, of~~ the following sections, as applicable, in the following order ~~named~~:

	Reference Rule No.
(1) Front Cover	<u>25-9.060</u>
(2) through (3) renumbered (1) through (2) No change.	
(3)(4) General Description of Territory Served	<u>25-9.063</u>
(5) through (10) renumbered (4) through (9) No change.	
(11) Back Cover	<u>25-9.071</u>

Rulemaking Authority 366.05(1) FS. Law Implemented 366.04(2)(b) FS. History—New 8-9-79, Formerly 25-9.55, Amended _____.

25-9.061 Title Page.

The title page must identify the volume as the rate book or tariff filed by the particular utility with the Florida Public Service Commission governing the sale of the specific utility service provided, ~~shall be a repetition of the front cover except that~~ it must ~~shall~~ be marked as Sheet No. 1 of the rate book in the (upper right corner) and must display ~~shall have thereon~~ the general information required by Rule 25-9.056, F.A.C., ~~of these regulations~~.

Rulemaking Authority 366.05(1) FS. Law Implemented 366.04(2)(b) FS. History—New 8-9-79, Formerly 25-9.61, Amended _____.

25-9.069 Standard Forms and Blank Bill Form.

An exact copy of all standard forms must ~~and a blank bill form of each schedule will~~ be shown.

Rulemaking Authority 366.05(1) FS. Law Implemented 366.04(2)(b) FS. History—New 8-9-69, Formerly 25-9.69, Amended _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Corey Hampson
NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE
PROPOSED RULE: Florida Public Service Commission
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY
HEAD: July 7, 2026
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT
PUBLISHED IN FAR: March 24, 2026 (Volume 52, Number
57)

FLORIDA GAMING CONTROL COMMISSION

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
75-2.021 Aggravating and Mitigating Circumstances
PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of this
proposed rulemaking is to make substantive changes to the rule
in connection with the Commission's rule review under section
120.5345(4), Florida Statutes.
SUMMARY: The proposed rulemaking amends the rule to
ensure that it is a valid exercise of delegated legislative
authority and to update statutory citations.
SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED
REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE
RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse
impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly
regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within
one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not
been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not
expected to require legislative ratification based on the
statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is
required, the information expressly relied upon and described
herein: Based on the nature of the amendments to the rules, the
Commission determined that the proposed rules are not
expected to have any adverse impact on small business or
increase regulatory costs that exceed the criteria in section
120.542(1) F.S., and that the proposed rules will not require
legislative ratification.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a
statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal
for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing
within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 550.0251(3), 550.2415(13)
FS

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 550.0251, 550.1155, 550.2415 FS
IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS
NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND
ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE
PROPOSED RULE IS: Shireen Anbardan, Chief Attorney,
Florida Gaming Control Commission, 4070 Esplanade Way,

Suite 250, Tallahassee, Florida 32399. Tel: (850)794-8079.
Email: Shireen.Anbardan@flgaming.gov.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

75-2.021 Aggravating and Mitigating Circumstances.

Circumstances to ~~which may~~ be considered for the purposes of
mitigation or aggravation of any penalty ~~shall include, but are~~
~~not limited to~~, the following:

(1) through (7) No change.

~~(8) Any other mitigating or aggravating circumstances.~~

Rulemaking Authority 16.712(2)(a), 550.0251(3), 550.2415(12)(13)
FS. Law Implemented 16.712(1)(a), 550.0251, 550.1155, 550.2415
FS. History—New 12-30-01, Formerly 61D-2.021, Amended.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Florida Gaming Control Commission
NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE
PROPOSED RULE: The Commissioners of the Florida
Gaming Control Commission
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY
HEAD: June 04, 2026
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT
PUBLISHED IN FAR: June 19, 2026

Section III Notice of Changes, Corrections and Withdrawals

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Public Employees Relations Commission

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
60CC-3.003 Maintenance of Special Magistrate Roster
NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been
made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph
120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 52 No. 131, July 8, 2026
issue of the Florida Administrative Register.

60CC-3.003 – Special Magistrate Roster.

(1) No change.

(2) In selecting special magistrates, the Chair may consider
the applicant's experience, education, skill in written
expression, neutrality, and willingness to undertake continuing
training as a special magistrate. The Chair may also consider
past or present memberships on a roster of arbitrators
maintained by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service,
the National Academy of Arbitrators, or the American
Arbitration Association.

(a) Preference will be given to applicants who have the
following prior experience:

1. Service as a neutral participant in public sector interest arbitration, public sector grievance arbitration, or private sector arbitration ~~arbitration~~;

2. through 4. No change.

(b) No change.

(3) through (4) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 447.207(1), (5) FS. Law Implemented 447.207(5), 447.403(2) FS. History—New 5-6-79, Amended 7-14-83, Formerly 38D-19.04, 38D-19.004, Amended _____.

Section IV Emergency Rules

NOTE: The full text of Emergency Rules that are currently in effect can be viewed by going to <https://flrules.org/Notice/emergencyRules.asp>.

Section V Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Rule Variance or Waiver

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

25-30.033 Application for Original Certificate of Authorization and Initial Rates and Charges

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on July 01, 2026, the Florida Public Service Commission, received a petition for Avalon Park Utilities, LLC. in Docket No. 20260099-WS – Application for original certificate of authorization for water and wastewater service in Volusia County, by Avalon Park Utilities LLC., filed July 1, 2026, seeking waiver of subparagraph 25-30.033(1)(j)2, paragraphs 25-30.033(1)(m), 25-30.033(1)(n), 25-30.033(1)(o), 25-30.033(1)(p), and 25-30.033(1)(q), Florida Administrative Code. These rules address the service area, water and wastewater facilities and financial information for the establishment of rates and charges for the proposed water and wastewater utility.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: the Office of Commission Clerk. Comments on the petition should be filed with the Office of Commission Clerk, Florida Public Service Commission, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850, within 14 days of publication of this notice.

For additional information, please contact Suzanne Brownless, Office of the General Counsel, at the above address or telephone (850)413-6199.

Section VI Notice of Meetings, Workshops and Public Hearings

REGIONAL UTILITY AUTHORITIES

Tampa Bay Water - A Regional Water Supply Authority
The Tampa Bay Water, A Regional Water Supply Authority, announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 13, 2026, 10:00 a.m., EDT

PLACE: Tampa Bay Water Administrative Offices, 2575 Enterprise Road, Clearwater, Florida 33763

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: A public meeting of the Selection Committee for As-Needed Hydrogeological Services, Contract Nos.: 2027011, 2027012, 2027013, 2027014, & 2027015. As a part of the selection process, the Selection Committee will meet to review and discuss the responses and ranking of the firms, determine if interviews are needed and review potential interview questions. A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Records Department at (727)796-2355.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Records Department at (727)796-2355. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Records Department at (727)796-2355.

REGIONAL UTILITY AUTHORITIES

Tampa Bay Water - A Regional Water Supply Authority
The Tampa Bay Water, A Regional Water Supply Authority, announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 28, 2026, 10:00 a.m., EDT or until completed.

PLACE: Tampa Bay Water Administrative Offices, 2575 Enterprise Road, Clearwater, Florida 33763.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: A public meeting of the Selection Committee for As-Needed Hydrogeological Services, Contract Nos. 2027011, 2027012, 2027013, 2026014, & 2027015. As a part of the selection process, the Selection Committee will hear presentations and conduct interviews with short-listed forms in order to determine the highest ranking firm to recommend for award. A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Records Department at (727)796-2355.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Records Department at (727)796-2355.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Records Department at (727)796-2355. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Records Department at (727)796-2355

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Clinical Social Work, Marriage and Family Therapy and Mental Health Counseling

The Board of Clinical Social Work, Marriage & Family Therapy, and Mental Health Counseling announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 13, 2026, 8:30 a.m., EST

PLACE: Sheraton Orlando North, 600 North Lake Destiny Road, Maitland, FL 32751. Telephone (407)660-9000.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: General board business involving discussion and actions, including, but not limited to general board business, licensure applications, rules and disciplinary matters.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: the board office at (850)245-4292 or by visiting our website at <https://floridasmentalhealthprofessions.gov/meeting-information/upcoming-meetings/>.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: the board office at (850)245-4292. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: the board office at (850)245-4292.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Family Safety and Preservation Program

The Department of Children and Families announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 10, 2026, 12:00 noon - 3:00 p.m., EDT

PLACE: Microsoft Teams

Meeting ID: 257 180 784 611 623

Passcode: NL99DW9Z

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The purpose of this meeting is for the Independent Living Services Advisory Council (ILSAC) to conduct general business.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: A more detailed agenda with relevant presentation material will be posted on the department's website, Public Events & Meetings | Florida DCF

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 1 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Andrea Ziglar, Department of Children and Families, (850)661-4162 or andrea.ziglar@myflfamilies.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

Section VII Notice of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Declaratory Statements

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Construction Industry Licensing Board

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Construction Industry Licensing Board has received the petition for declaratory statement from declaratory statement from Tambre Lee on behalf of Santa Rosa County, Petitioner, filed on July 8, 2026. The petition seeks the agency's opinion as to the applicability of Section 489.115(4)(b), Florida Statutes, as it applies to the petitioner.

Petitioner asks the Board, "Whether the limited certification authority granted to certified Division I contractors under section 489.115(4)(b), Florida Statutes, authorized the performance of professional design services beyond the certification expressly described by the Legislature?" Except for good cause shown, motions for leave to intervene must be filed within 21 days after publication of this notice.

A copy of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Amanda Ackermann, Executive Director, Construction Industry Licensing Board, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1039 or telephone: (850)487-1395, or by electronic mail to Amanda.Ackermann@myfloridalicense.com.

Section VIII

Notice of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding the Validity of Rules

Notice of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Notice of Disposition of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Section IX

Notice of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Non-rule Policy Challenges

NONE

Section X

Announcements and Objection Reports of the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee

NONE

Section XI

Notices Regarding Bids, Proposals and Purchasing

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Division of Administrative Hearings

Request for Proposal

The Division of Administrative Hearings seeks to establish a Purchase Order/Contract with a responsive, responsible and qualified Vendor to provide a robust, secure, and user-friendly text-based Search Function Solution for DOAH's public-facing websites, including software, implementation, migration, testing, training, maintenance, support, and documentation. For information pertaining to the RFP and schedule of events, please use this link: <https://vendor.myfloridamarketplace.com/search/bids/detail/16529>.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION
Andrews Dock Replacement & River Road Day Use Area.
BID NO: FWC 25/26-109C.

TITLE: Andrews Dock Replacement & River Road Day Use Area.

The Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission is seeking competitive pricing for To replace the dock located at Andrews Wildlife Management Area. Installing an ADA concrete sidewalk from the proposed boardwalk to the information kiosk. Construction of improvements to the River Road Day use area, in accordance with the contract documents and Chapter 255 of the Florida Statutes.

To review the bid details:

Visit <https://vendor.myfloridamarketplace.com/>

Select Search Advertisements.

Enter FWC 25/26-109C into the Agency Advertisement Number box.

Click the Search button.

Select the solicitation to view the advertisement details.

Download files made available in the advertisement details page.

NOTE: The MyFloridaMarketPlace Vendor Information Portal (link provided above) is the posting location for all new and changing information regarding this solicitation. Interested bidders should continue to monitor this site for the entirety of the solicitation process.

Direct all questions to the Procurement Manager: Randy Golightly, Florida Fish & Wildlife Conservation Commission, 1875 ORANGE AVENUE EAST, Tallahassee, FL 32311-6160, Randolph.Golightly@MyFWC.com, (850)617-9648.

Core Construction Services of Florida, LLC

INVITATION TO BID - Broward College Project # [2000-C23-01.0, B56 & B57 Remodel into STEM & Nursing Expansion, Coconut Creek, FL]

CORE is the Construction Manager at Risk with a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for Broward College.

There will be a NON-MANDATORY Pre-Bid Meeting onsite on: Tuesday, July 28, 2026, 9:00 a.m., EST @ Building 57, 1000 Coconut Creek BLVD., Coconut Creek, FL 33066

Bid documents will be made available by CORE at the first Bid Advertisement; Monday, July 13th, 2026 and at the pre-bid meeting for reference only, through Building Connected or by email. Please email bids@coreconstruction.com to request the documents and access to Building Connected.

The bid package(s) for this scope of work will include Site Development, Landscaping, Structure, Envelope, Openings, Finishes, Specialties, Equipment, Elevators, MEP Systems, and Demolition.

Broward College encourages small business participation. CORE encourages all subcontractors to get pre-qualified to bid

this project. ALL Subcontractors MUST be pre-qualified with CORE via bids@coreconstruction.com prior to the Bid Date. Questions or Request For Information will be received via email at bids@coreconstruction.com until Tuesday, August 4th, @ 5:00 p.m., EST with subject line: Questions – BC Project 2000-C23-01.0.

Responses to Questions or Request For Information will be issued via bids@coreconstruction.com by Tuesday, August 11th, 2026 @ 5:00 p.m., EST.

All SEALED BIDS MUST be received by Tuesday, August 18th, 2026 @ 1:30 p.m., EST via

www.buildingconnected.com ONLY. No other form of submission will be accepted.

DO NOT DELIVER BIDS TO BROWARD COLLEGE. All sealed bids will be logged in and time/date stamped when received in Building Connected.

All SEALED bids will be opened publicly with Broward College on Tuesday, August 18th, 2026 @ 2:00 p.m., EST at Broward College Central Campus, Building 23, Room 103, 3501 Davie Road, Davie, FL 33314. Broward College reserves the right to waive minor technicalities.

DO NOT CONTACT BROWARD COLLEGE. ALL CORRESPONDENCE MUST BE THROUGH CORE.

Section XII Miscellaneous

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Index of Administrative Rules Filed with the Secretary of State Pursuant to subparagraphs 120.55(1)(b)7. – 8., F.S., the below list of rules were filed in the Office of the Secretary of State between 3:00 p.m., Monday, July 20, 2026, and 3:00 p.m., Friday, July 24, 2026.

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date
33-507.201	7/20/2026	8/9/2026
59C-1.004	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
62-304.100	7/24/2026	-
62-304.300	7/24/2026	-
62-304.305	7/24/2026	-
62-304.310	7/24/2026	-
62-304.315	7/24/2026	-
62-304.325	7/24/2026	-
62-304.330	7/24/2026	-
62-304.810	7/24/2026	-
63C-1.001	7/23/2026	8/12/2026
63C-1.002	7/23/2026	8/12/2026

63C-1.003	7/23/2026	8/12/2026
63C-2.001	7/22/2026	8/11/2026
63C-2.002	7/22/2026	8/11/2026
64B9-8.006	7/22/2026	8/11/2026
64B15-9.0085	7/21/2026	8/10/2026
64B15-12.005	7/21/2026	8/10/2026
67-21.001	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.002	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.0025	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.003	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.004	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.0045	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.006	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.007	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.008	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.009	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.010	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.013	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.014	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.015	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.017	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.018	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.019	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.025	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.026	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.027	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.028	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.029	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.030	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-21.031	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.001	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.002	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.004	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.007	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.0072	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.0075	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.009	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.0095	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.010	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.0105	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.013	7/24/2026	8/13/2026

67-48.014	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.015	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.017	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.018	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.019	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.020	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.0205	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.022	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.023	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.027	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.028	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.029	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.030	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
67-48.031	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
69O-137.001	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
69O-137.004	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
69O-137.008	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
69O-154.116	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
69O-204.201	7/24/2026	8/13/2026
LIST OF RULES AWAITING LEGISLATIVE APPROVAL SECTIONS 120.541(3), 373.139(7) AND/OR 373.1391(6), FLORIDA STATUTES		
Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date
14-10.0043	4/11/2025	**/**/****
65C-9.004	3/31/2022	**/**/****
69C-2.004	11/5/2025	**/**/****
69C-2.005	11/5/2025	**/**/****
69C-2.016	11/5/2025	**/**/****
69C-2.022	11/5/2025	**/**/****
69C-2.026	11/5/2025	**/**/****
69C-2.034	11/5/2025	**/**/****
69C-2.035	11/5/2025	**/**/****

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Division of Motor Vehicles

Establishment of Thompson Sales LLC, line-make MVAU
 Notice of Publication for a New Point Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population
 Pursuant to section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that MV Agusta Motorcycles North America, Inc, intends to allow the establishment of Thompson Sales LLC d/b/a Prime Motorcycles, as a dealership for the sale and service of

motorcycles manufactured by MV Agusta Motor S.P.A (line-make MVAU) at 1124 W New Haven Ave, Melbourne, (Brevard County), Florida 32904, on or after August 26, 2026. The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Thompson Sales LLC are dealer operator(s): Chad Thompson, 11401 NW 122nd St., Miami, Florida 33178; principal investor(s): Chad Thompson, 11401 NW 122nd St., Miami, Florida 33178.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Sondra L. Howard, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312 MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: John Acton, MV Agusta Motorcycles North America, Inc, 30125 KTM Way, Murrieta, California 92563.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY

FLORIDA FINDING OF NO SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

City of Perry, Florida

The Florida Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) has determined that the City of Perry's project for Water Treatment Plant Improvements is not expected to have a significant adverse impact on the environment. The total estimated construction cost is \$35,000,000. The project may qualify for a Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan composed of federal and state funds. DEP will consider public comments about the environmental impacts of the proposed projects that are postmarked or delivered at the address below within 30 days of this notice. A copy of the FONSI can be obtained by writing to: Mahnaz Massoudi, DEP, 3900 Commonwealth Blvd., MS # 3505, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000, or calling (850)245-2960 or emailing Mahnaz.Massoudi@FloridaDEP.gov.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Notice of Completed Rule Review

RULE NOS.:RULE TITLES:

62-304.100 Scope and Intent

62-304.300 St. Marks River Basin TMDLs

62-304.305 Ochlockonee River Basin TMDLs

62-304.310 Apalachicola River Basin TMDLs

62-304.315 Chipola River Basin TMDLs

62-304.325 Choctawhatchee River Basin TMDLs

62-304.330 Pensacola Bay Basin TMDLs

62-304.810 Everglades West Coast Basin TMDLs

Notice is hereby given that on July 24, 2026, the above rules completed the rule review process pursuant to section 120.5435, F.S.

Section XIII

Index to Rules Filed During Preceding
Week

NOTE: The above section will be published on Tuesday beginning October 2, 2012, unless Monday is a holiday, then it will be published on Wednesday of that week.
